

In the Matter Of:

In Re: DEU Applications

HEARING

November 26, 2019

Job Number: 591447

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF UTAH

In the Matter of the)	
Application of Dominion)	Docket No. 19-057-28
Energy Utah to Change the)	
Infrastructure Rate)	
Adjustment)	
)	
In the Matter of the)	Docket No. 19-057-29
Application of Dominion)	
Energy Utah to Amortize)	
the Energy Efficiency)	
Deferred Account Balance)	HEARING

November 26, 2019
10:00 a.m.

Location: Public Service Commission
160 East 300 South, 4th Floor
Salt Lake City, UT 84111
(801) 530-6769

Reporter: Teri Hansen Cronenwett
Certified Realtime Reporter, Registered Merit Reporter

Job No. 588277

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

A P P E A R A N C E S

Presiding Officer:	Michael Hammer
For Dominion Energy Utah:	Jenniffer Nelson Clark Dominion Energy Utah 333 South State Street P.O. Box 45433 Salt Lake City, Utah 84145-0433 (801) 324-5392 (801) 324-5935 (fax) Jenniffer.clark@dominionenergy.com
For the Division of Public Utilities:	Patricia Schmid Assistant Attorney General 160 E. 300 South, 5th Floor P.O. Box 140857 Salt Lake City, UT 84114-0857 (801) 366-0335 pschmid@agutah.gov

I N D E X

Witness	Page
JORDAN STEPHENSON	
Direct Examination by Ms. Clark	4
ERIC ORTON	
Direct Examination by Ms. Schmid	10
SHAUNA BENVEGNUM-SPRINGER	
Direct Examination by Ms. Schmid	13

1 November 26, 2019

10:00 a.m.

2 P R O C E E D I N G S

3 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: Good morning,
4 everyone. This is the time and place noticed for
5 hearing in the Application of Dominion Energy Utah to
6 Change the Infrastructure Rate Adjustment and the
7 Application of Dominion Energy Utah to Amortize the
8 Energy Efficiency Deferred Account Balance. Those are
9 Commission Docket Nos. 19-057-28 and 19-057-29.

10 My name is Michael Hammer. I'm the
11 commission's designated presiding officer. Let's go
12 ahead and take appearances, please.

13 MS. CLARK: Jenniffer Nelson Clark. I am
14 counsel for Dominion Energy Utah, and I have with me
15 Jordan Stephenson, who will be the company's witness on
16 both dockets today.

17 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: Thank you.

18 MS. SCHMID: Good morning. I am Patricia E.
19 Schmid with the Utah Attorney General office
20 representing the Division of Public Utilities. With me
21 I have Eric Orton, who will be the division's witness in
22 Docket No. 19-057-28, and Ms. Shauna Benvegna-Springer,
23 who will be our witness in 19-057-29. Thank you.

24 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: All right. Is
25 there anything before we begin? I think my preference

1 would be to have Mr. Stephenson testify with respect to
2 both dockets first, if there's no objection.

3 MS. CLARK: No. Perfect.

4 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: All right.

5 MS. CLARK: Mr. Stephenson -- the company
6 calls Jordan Stephenson.

7 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: Mr. Stephenson, do
8 you swear to tell the truth?

9 THE WITNESS: Yes.

10 JORDAN STEPHENSON,

11 was called as a witness, and having been first duly
12 sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:

13 DIRECT EXAMINATION

14 BY MS. CLARK:

15 Q. Mr. Stephenson, will you please state your
16 full name and business address for the record.

17 A. Yes. Jordan K. Stephenson, 333 South State
18 Street, Salt Lake City.

19 Q. Mr. Stephenson, with regard to Docket No.
20 19-057-28, the tracker docket, was that application
21 prepared by you or under your direction?

22 A. Yes.

23 Q. And were the exhibits attached to that
24 application, the DEU Exhibits 1.1 through DEU Exhibits
25 1.6, also prepared by you or under your direction?

1 A. Yes.

2 Q. And do you adopt the contents of those
3 documents as your testimony here today?

4 A. Yes.

5 MS. CLARK: The company moves for admission of
6 the application and accompanying Exhibits 1.1 through
7 1.6 in Docket No. 19-057-28.

8 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: They are admitted.

9 MS. CLARK: Thank you.

10 Q. (By Ms. Clark) Mr. Stephenson, can you please
11 summarize the relief the company requests in this
12 docket.

13 A. Yes, I can. In this docket the company seeks
14 to adjust the infrastructure tracker replacement rate to
15 include investment related to replacement projects that
16 were in service as of October 31st, 2019. The majority
17 of this additional investment occurred in the Feeder
18 Line 29 -- or apologies, Feeder Line 21 and Davis County
19 intermediate high pressure belt line replacement
20 projects.

21 The company is requesting a 2.8 million dollar
22 increase in annual revenue related to this investment,
23 resulting in a total annual revenue requirement of 34.5
24 million. If approved, this would result in an increase
25 of \$1.98 per year, or .31 percent paid by a typical

1 customer using 80 decatherms per year.

2 The rates proposed in this case are just,
3 reasonable and in the public interest, and the company
4 requests commission approval effective December 1, 2019.

5 Q. Mr. Stephenson, I'd like to turn your
6 attention to the second docket to be addressed in the
7 hearing today, Docket 19-057-29, the energy efficiency
8 docket. Was the application and accompanying exhibits,
9 DEU Exhibit 11.1 through DEU Exhibit 1.6, prepared by
10 you or under your direction?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. And do you have any corrections to make to any
13 of those documents?

14 A. I do. I have two corrections to make. The
15 first is to request that we strike Exhibit 1.6, the
16 combined tariff sheets that include the effects of the
17 change in the tracker rate. The reason is that these
18 combined rates had a correction that occurred prior to
19 filing that did not get updated.

20 The exhibit, the same exhibit in Docket No.
21 19-057-28 that includes the combined tariff sheets are
22 correct. So for purposes of showing the proposed
23 cumulative change of these two dockets, we would refer
24 parties to Docket 28 -- 19-057-28, Exhibit 1.6, that
25 shows the combined change. And we would propose

1 striking the combined tariff sheets out of Exhibit 1.6
2 in the 29 docket.

3 In addition, we have a correction to make on
4 page 1 of the application where we refer to the rates
5 taking effect November 1st, 2019. This is in the second
6 paragraph. That should say December 1st of 2019, and
7 those are my two corrections.

8 **Q. And with those corrections, Mr. Stephenson,**
9 **would you adopt the contents of the application and DEU**
10 **Exhibits 1.1 through 1.5 as your testimony today?**

11 A. Yes.

12 MS. CLARK: The company would move for
13 admission of the application in Docket No. 19-057-29,
14 along with accompanying Exhibits 1.1 through 1.5 into
15 evidence.

16 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: They are admitted.

17 MS. CLARK: Thank you.

18 **Q. (By Ms. Clark) Mr. Stephenson, can you**
19 **summarize the relief the company is requesting in this**
20 **docket?**

21 A. Yes. In this docket the company seeks for
22 approval to adjust the energy efficiency amortization
23 rate to collect an additional \$823,000 in annual
24 revenue. Based on the forecasted 2020 budgeted
25 expenditures increasing from 24.5 million in 2018 to

1 26.4 million in 2020, and higher projected volumes for
2 the test period, this would enable the company to
3 collect the necessary revenue while at the same time
4 minimizing interest expense related to the deferral
5 account.

6 If approved, this would result in an increase
7 of 61 cents per year, or .1 percent, paid by a typical
8 customer using 80 decatherms per year. The proposed
9 amortization rate is just, reasonable and in the public
10 interest, and the company requests approval by the
11 commission effective December 1st, 2019.

12 MS. CLARK: Mr. Stephenson is available for
13 cross-examination and commission questions.

14 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: Ms. Schmid?

15 MS. SCHMID: Could we please go off the record
16 for just one moment?

17 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: Certainly. Let's
18 go off the record.

19 MS. SCHMID: Thank you.

20 (Discussion off the record.)

21 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: We will be back on
22 the record. Ms. Schmid?

23 MS. SCHMID: Thank you. The division would
24 like to call Mr. Eric --

25 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: Cross-examination.

1 MS. SCHMID: Sorry. I was so excited. The
2 division has no cross-examination questions.

3 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: Thank you.
4 Ms. Clark, any other witnesses?

5 MS. CLARK: No. The company has no further
6 witnesses. May I have one moment?

7 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: Of course.

8 MS. CLARK: I have one more question for
9 Mr. Stephenson for purposes of clarification.

10 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: Go ahead.

11 MS. CLARK: Is that okay?

12 **Q. (By Ms. Clark) Mr. Stephenson, would you like**
13 **to clarify the revenue requirement request in this**
14 **docket?**

15 A. Yes.

16 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: For clarification,
17 which docket?

18 THE WITNESS: For the infrastructure tracker
19 docket.

20 MS. CLARK: I apologize. It's the --

21 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: 19-057-28.

22 THE WITNESS: That's correct.

23 A. I believe in my summary, I may have mistakenly
24 stated that the total annual revenue requirement going
25 forward is 34.5 million. That is incorrect. That was

1 the prior revenue requirement. We are requesting a 2.8
2 million dollar increase from that level, and the
3 resulting annual revenue requirement is 37.5 million
4 going forward.

5 MS. CLARK: The company has no further
6 questions for Mr. Stephenson and no additional
7 witnesses.

8 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: Thank you.
9 Ms. Schmid, any follow-up?

10 MS. SCHMID: No follow-up.

11 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: Go ahead and call
12 your first witness.

13 MS. SCHMID: Thank you. The division would
14 like to call Mr. Eric Orton as its witness in Docket No.
15 19-057-28. May he please be sworn.

16 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: Mr. Orton, do you
17 swear to tell the truth?

18 THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. I do.

19 ERIC ORTON,
20 was called as a witness, and having been first duly
21 sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:

22 DIRECT EXAMINATION

23 BY MS. SCHMID:

24 Q. Good morning. Please state your full name,
25 business address, employer and title.

1 A. My name is Eric Orton. Business address is
2 160 East 300 South, Salt Lake City. I am employed by
3 the Division of Public Utilities as a utility technical
4 consultant.

5 **Q. In conjunction with your employment at the**
6 **division, have you participated on behalf of the**
7 **division in this docket?**

8 A. I have.

9 **Q. Did you prepare or cause to be prepared the**
10 **Division's action request response dated November 14th,**
11 **2019, entitled Docket No. 19-057-28 DEU, approve**
12 **application of Dominion Energy Utah to change the**
13 **infrastructure rates adjustment?**

14 A. Yes.

15 **Q. Do you have any changes or corrections to that**
16 **action request response?**

17 A. No. It's accurate.

18 **Q. Do you adopt that action request response as**
19 **part of your testimony today?**

20 A. I do.

21 MS. SCHMID: With that, the division would
22 like to move for the admission of the division's action
23 request response in Docket No. 19-057-28.

24 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: It's admitted.

25 **Q. (By Ms. Schmid) Mr. Orton, do you have a**

1 **summary to present today?**

2 A. I do.

3 **Q. Please proceed.**

4 A. Thank you. In this filing, Docket No.
5 19-057-28, the gas utility provides the amounts and
6 dates of when tracker infrastructure investment was
7 completed and placed into service. This filing
8 represents a total revenue requirement of 37.471 million
9 dollars, or an incremental revenue requirement increase
10 of 2.881 million, above the current revenue requirement
11 of 34.590 million.

12 The gas utility now proposes to collect in
13 rates the revenue requirement associated with these
14 investment amounts. This application complies with
15 commission, past commission orders, and the proposed
16 tariff sheets accurately reflect the proposed changes
17 filed by the gas utility.

18 Therefore, the division recommends the
19 commission approve the proposed rates on -- with an
20 effective date of December 1st, 2019, on an interim
21 basis until the division can complete its audit, at
22 which time it will provide a final recommendation to the
23 commission. That concludes my comments.

24 MS. SCHMID: Thank you. Mr. Orton is now
25 available for cross-examination and questions from the

1 commission.

2 MS. CLARK: Company has no questions.

3 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: And I have none.

4 Thank you, Mr. Orton.

5 THE WITNESS: Thank you.

6 MS. SCHMID: The division would like to call

7 Ms. Shauna Benvegnu-Springer as its next witness in

8 Docket No. 19-057-28. May she please be sworn.

9 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: Ms. Springer --

10 MS. SCHMID: Sorry. I apologize, in 29.

11 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: Thank you.

12 Ms. Springer, do you swear to tell the truth?

13 THE WITNESS: I do.

14 SHAUNA BENVEGNUM-SPRINGER,

15 was called as a witness, and having been first duly

16 sworn to tell the truth, testified as follows:

17 DIRECT EXAMINATION

18 BY MS. SCHMID:

19 Q. Could you please state your name, business
20 address, title and employer for the record.

21 A. Shauna Benvegnum-Springer, and I am utility
22 technical consultant for the division.

23 Q. In conjunction with your employment at the
24 division, did you prepare or cause to be prepared and
25 filed the division's November 13th, 2019, action request

1 response entitled Dominion Energy Docket 19-057-29,
2 Energy Efficiency, EE, Deferred Account Balance?

3 A. I did.

4 Q. Do you have any changes or corrections to the
5 division's action request response?

6 A. No, I don't. It stands accurate.

7 Q. Do you adopt the division's action request
8 response in this docket dated November 13th, 2019, as
9 part of your testimony today?

10 A. I do.

11 MS. SCHMID: With that, the division would
12 like to move for the admission of the division's action
13 request dated November 13th, 2019, in the 29 docket.

14 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: It's admitted.

15 MS. SCHMID: Thank you.

16 Q. (By Ms. Schmid) Ms. Benvegna-Springer, do you
17 have a summary to present today?

18 A. I do.

19 Q. Please proceed.

20 A. In Docket 19-57-29 the company has asked to
21 continue to amortize the energy efficiency deferred
22 account balance. The request includes an adjustment to
23 amortize the rate in order to collect the proposed
24 2020-DSM energy efficiency budget of 26.4 million, plus
25 the September 30, 2019, uncollected balance that was 2.4

1 million.

2 Proposed demand site budget energy
3 amortization rate is an increase to the current rate of
4 0.25373 to 0.26120 per decatherm. The proposed increase
5 of 0.00747 will help to bring the December 2020 deferred
6 expense balance to a more acceptable level and will help
7 to minimize the DSM EE interest expense.

8 Typical GS residential customer who uses this
9 80 -- uses 80 decatherms per year will see an increase
10 of approximately .61 or .01 percent on their annual
11 bill, independent of any others increases or decreases.

12 The division has reviewed the application and
13 exhibits and believes that the change, the requested
14 change is just, reasonable and in the public interest.
15 The division recommends the commission approve the rate
16 on the interim basis with an effective date of December
17 1st until the division can complete an audit of the
18 entries in the energy efficiency deferred account. This
19 concludes my summary.

20 MS. SCHMID: Ms. Benvegna-Springer is now
21 available for cross-examination questions and questions
22 from the commission.

23 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: Ms. Clark?

24 MS. CLARK: No questions.

25 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: And I have none.

1 Thank you. Is there anything else from the parties
2 before we adjourn?

3 MS. CLARK: There is not.

4 MS. SCHMID: Nothing from the division.

5 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: Thank you,
6 everyone.

7 MS. SCHMID: Thank you.

8 PRESIDING OFFICER HAMMER: Happy holidays.

9 (The hearing concluded at 10:16 a.m.)

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

C E R T I F I C A T E

STATE OF UTAH)
COUNTY OF SALT LAKE)

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the foregoing proceedings were taken before me, Teri Hansen Cronenwett, Certified Realtime Reporter, Registered Merit Reporter and Notary Public in and for the State of Utah.

That the proceedings were reported by me in Stenotype, and thereafter transcribed by computer under my supervision, and that a full, true, and correct transcription is set forth in the foregoing pages, numbered 3 through 16 inclusive.

I further certify that I am not of kin or otherwise associated with any of the parties to said cause of action, and that I am not interested in the event thereof.

WITNESS MY HAND and official seal at Salt Lake City, Utah, this 9th day of December, 2019.



Teri Hansen Cronenwett, CRR, RMR
License No. 91-109812-7801

My commission expires:
January 19, 2023

1 HEALTH INFORMATION PRIVACY & SECURITY: CAUTIONARY NOTICE
2 Litigation Services is committed to compliance with applicable federal
3 and state laws and regulations ("Privacy Laws") governing the
4 protection and security of patient health information. Notice is
5 hereby given to all parties that transcripts of depositions and legal
6 proceedings, and transcript exhibits, may contain patient health
7 information that is protected from unauthorized access, use and
8 disclosure by Privacy Laws. Litigation Services requires that access,
9 maintenance, use, and disclosure (including but not limited to
10 electronic database maintenance and access, storage, distribution/
11 dissemination and communication) of transcripts/exhibits containing
12 patient information be performed in compliance with Privacy Laws.
13 No transcript or exhibit containing protected patient health
14 information may be further disclosed except as permitted by Privacy
15 Laws. Litigation Services expects that all parties, parties'
16 attorneys, and their HIPAA Business Associates and Subcontractors will
17 make every reasonable effort to protect and secure patient health
18 information, and to comply with applicable Privacy Law mandates,
19 including but not limited to restrictions on access, storage, use, and
20 disclosure (sharing) of transcripts and transcript exhibits, and
21 applying "minimum necessary" standards where appropriate. It is
22 recommended that your office review its policies regarding sharing of
23 transcripts and exhibits - including access, storage, use, and
24 disclosure - for compliance with Privacy Laws.

25 © All Rights Reserved. Litigation Services (rev. 6/1/2019)

\$	11.1 6:9	2.881 12:10	31 5:25	15:9
\$1.98 5:25	13 2:24	2018 7:25	31st 5:16	801 324-5392 2:6
\$823,000 7:23	13th 13:25 14:8,13	2019 3:1 5:16 6:4 7:5,6 8:11 11:11 12:20 13:25 14:8, 13,25	333 2:5 4:17 34.5 5:23 9:25	801 324-5935 2:7
0	140857 2:11		34.590 12:11	801 366-0335 2:12
0.00747 15:5	14th 11:10	2020 7:24 8:1 15:5	37.471 12:8	84114-0857 2:11
0.25373 15:4	160 11:2	2020-DSM 14:24	37.5 10:3	84145-0433 2:6
0.26120 15:4	19-057-28 3:9,22 4:20 5:7 6:21,24 9:21 10:15 11:11,23 12:5 13:8	21 5:18	4	A
01 15:10		24.5 7:25	4 2:19	
1	19-057-29 3:9,23 6:7 7:13 14:1	26 3:1	45433 2:5	a.m. 3:1 16:9
1 6:4 7:4 8:7		26.4 8:1 14:24	5	above 12:10
1.1 4:24 5:6 7:10,14	19-57-29 14:20	28 6:24	5th 2:10	acceptable 15:6
1.5 7:10,14	1st 7:5,6 8:11 12:20 15:17	29 5:18 7:2 13:10 14:13	6	accompanyin g 5:6 6:8 7:14
1.6 4:25 5:7 6:9,15,24 7:1	2	3	61 8:7 15:10	account 3:8 8:5 14:2,22 15:18
10 2:21	2.4 14:25	30 14:25	8	
10:00 3:1	2.8 5:21 10:1	300 2:10 11:2	80 6:1 8:8	accurate 11:17 14:6
10:16 16:9				

accurately 12:16	adopt 5:2 7:9 11:18 14:7	application 3:5,7 4:20,24 5:6 6:8 7:4,9, 13 11:12 12:14 15:12	<hr/> B <hr/>	Box 2:5,11
action 11:10, 16,18,22 13:25 14:5,7, 12	ahead 3:12 9:10 10:11	approval 6:4 7:22 8:10	back 8:21	bring 15:5
addition 7:3	All 3:24 4:4	approve 11:11 12:19 15:15	balance 3:8 14:2,22,25 15:6	budget 14:24 15:2
additional 5:17 7:23 10:6	along 7:14	approved 5:24 8:6	Based 7:24	budgeted 7:24
address 4:16 10:25 11:1 13:20	amortization 7:22 8:9 15:3	approved 5:24 8:6	basis 12:21 15:16	business 4:16 10:25 11:1 13:19
addressed 6:6	amortize 3:7 14:21,23	approximatel y 15:10	before 3:25 16:2	<hr/> C <hr/>
adjourn 16:2	amounts 12:5,14	Assistant 2:10	begin 3:25	call 8:24 10:11,14 13:6
adjust 5:14 7:22	annual 5:22, 23 7:23 9:24 10:3 15:10	associated 12:13	behalf 11:6	called 4:11 10:20 13:15
adjustment 3:6 11:13 14:22	anything 3:25 16:1	attached 4:23	believe 9:23 15:13	calls 4:6
admission 5:5 7:13 11:22 14:12	apologies 5:18	attention 6:6	believes 15:13	case 6:2
admitted 5:8 7:16 11:24 14:14	apologize 9:20 13:10	Attorney 2:10 3:19	belt 5:19	cause 11:9 13:24
	appearances 3:12	audit 12:21 15:17	Benvegnu- springer 2:23 3:22 13:7,14, 21 14:16 15:20	cents 8:7
		available 8:12 12:25 15:21	bill 15:11	Certainly 8:17
			both 3:16 4:2	change 3:6

6:17,23,25 11:12 15:13, 14	23 13:1 15:15,22	7:9	D	DEU 4:24 6:9 7:9 11:11
changes 11:15 12:16 14:4	commission's 3:11	continue 14:21	date 12:20 15:16	Direct 2:19, 21,24 4:13 10:22 13:17
City 2:6,11 4:18 11:2	company 4:5 5:5,11,13,21 6:3 7:12,19, 21 8:2,10 9:5 10:5 13:2 14:20	correct 6:22 9:22	dated 11:10 14:8,13	direction 4:21,25 6:10
clarification 9:9,16	company's 3:15	correction 6:18 7:3	dates 12:6	discussion 8:20
clarify 9:13	complete 12:21 15:17	corrections 6:12,14 7:7,8 11:15 14:4	Davis 5:18	division 2:9 3:20 8:23 9:2 10:13 11:3,6, 7,21 12:18,21 13:6,22,24 14:11 15:12, 15,17 16:4
Clark 2:4,19 3:13 4:3,5,14 5:5,9,10 7:12, 17,18 8:12 9:4,5,8,11,12, 20 10:5 13:2 15:23,24 16:3	completed 12:7	counsel 3:14	decatherm 15:4	division's 3:21 11:10,22 13:25 14:5,7, 12
collect 7:23 8:3 12:12 14:23	complies 12:14	County 5:18	decatherms 6:1 8:8 15:9	docket 3:9,22 4:19,20 5:7, 12,13 6:6,7,8, 20,24 7:2,13, 20,21 9:14, 17,19 10:14 11:7,11,23 12:4 13:8 14:1,8,13,20
combined 6:16,18,21,25 7:1	concluded 16:9	course 9:7	December 6:4 7:6 8:11 12:20 15:5,16	dockets 3:16 4:2 6:23
comments 12:23	concludes 12:23 15:19	cross- examination 8:13,25 9:2 12:25 15:21	decreases 15:11	
commission 3:9 6:4 8:11, 13 12:15,19,	conjunction 11:5 13:23	cumulative 6:23	deferral 8:4	
	consultant 11:4 13:22	current 12:10 15:3	deferred 3:8 14:2,21 15:5, 18	
	contents 5:2	customer 6:1 8:8 15:8	demand 15:2	
			designated 3:11	

documents 5:3 6:13	11:2	exhibit 6:9, 15,20,24 7:1	follows 4:12 10:21 13:16	21 10:8,11,16 11:24 13:3,9, 11 14:14 15:23,25 16:5,8
dollar 5:21 10:2	employer 10:25 13:20	exhibits 4:23, 24 5:6 6:8 7:10,14 15:13	forecasted 7:24	Happy 16:8
dollars 12:9	employment 11:5 13:23	expenditures 7:25	forward 9:25 10:4	having 4:11 10:20 13:15
Dominion 2:4 3:5,7,14 11:12 14:1	enable 8:2	expense 8:4 15:6,7	full 4:16 10:24	hearing 3:5 6:7 16:9
DSM 15:7	energy 2:4 3:5,7,8,14 6:7 7:22 11:12 14:1,2,21,24 15:2,18	<hr/> F <hr/>	further 9:5 10:5	help 15:5,6
duly 4:11 10:20 13:15	entitled 11:11 14:1	fax 2:7	<hr/> G <hr/>	here 5:3
<hr/> E <hr/>	entries 15:18	Feeder 5:17, 18	gas 12:5,12, 17	high 5:19
East 11:2	Eric 2:20 3:21 8:24 10:14,19 11:1	filed 12:17 13:25	General 2:10 3:19	higher 8:1
EE 14:2 15:7	everyone 3:4 16:6	filing 6:19 12:4,7	Good 3:3,18 10:24	holidays 16:8
effect 7:5	evidence 7:15	final 12:22	GS 15:8	<hr/> I <hr/>
effective 6:4 8:11 12:20 15:16	Examination 2:19,21,24 4:13 10:22 13:17	first 4:2,11 6:15 10:12,20 13:15	<hr/> H <hr/>	include 5:15 6:16
effects 6:16	excited 9:1	Floor 2:10	Hammer 2:2 3:3,10,17,24 4:4,7 5:8 7:16 8:14,17,21,25 9:3,7,10,16,	includes 6:21 14:22
efficiency 3:8 6:7 7:22 14:2, 21,24 15:18		follow-up 10:9,10		incorrect 9:25
employed				increase

5:22,24 8:6 10:2 12:9 15:3,4,9	J	7:3	N	off 8:15,18,20
increases 15:11	Jennifer 2:4 3:13	may 9:6,23 10:15 13:8	name 3:10 4:16 10:24 11:1 13:19	office 3:19
increasing 7:25	Jennifer. clark@ dominionener gy. 2:7	Michael 2:2 3:10	necessary 8:3	officer 2:2 3:3,11,17,24 4:4,7 5:8 7:16 8:14,17,21,25 9:3,7,10,16, 21 10:8,11,16 11:24 13:3,9, 11 14:14 15:23,25 16:5,8
incremental 12:9	Jordan 2:18 3:15 4:6,10, 17	million 5:21, 24 7:25 8:1 9:25 10:2,3 12:8,10,11 14:24 15:1	Nelson 2:4 3:13	
independent 15:11	L	minimize 15:7	next 13:7	one 8:16 9:6, 8
infrastructure 3:6 5:14 9:18 11:13 12:6	Lake 2:6,11 4:18 11:2	minimizing 8:4	none 13:3 15:25	order 14:23
interest 6:3 8:4,10 15:7, 14	level 10:2 15:6	mistakenly 9:23	Nos 3:9	orders 12:15
interim 12:20 15:16	like 6:5 8:24 9:12 10:14 11:22 13:6 14:12	moment 8:16 9:6	Nothing 16:4	Orton 2:20 3:21 10:14, 16,19 11:1,25 12:24 13:4
intermediate 5:19	line 5:18,19	more 9:8 15:6	noticed 3:4	others 15:11
into 7:14 12:7	M	morning 3:3, 18 10:24	O	P
investment 5:15,17,22 12:6,14	majority 5:16	move 7:12 11:22 14:12	objection 4:2	P.O. 2:5,11
	make 6:12,14	moves 5:5	occurred 5:17 6:18	paid 5:25 8:7
			October 5:16	paragraph

7:6	4:21,25 6:9 11:9 13:24	12:12	reason 6:17	9:13 11:10, 16,18,23 13:25 14:5,7, 13,22
part 11:19 14:9	present 12:1 14:17	provide 12:22	reasonable 6:3 8:9 15:14	
participated 11:6	presiding 2:2 3:3,11,17,24 4:4,7 5:8 7:16 8:14,17,21,25 9:3,7,10,16, 21 10:8,11,16 11:24 13:3,9, 11 14:14 15:23,25 16:5,8	provides 12:5	recommendat ion 12:22	requested 15:13
parties 6:24 16:1		pschmid@ agutah.gov 2:12	recommends 12:18 15:15	requesting 5:21 7:19 10:1
past 12:15		public 2:10 3:20 6:3 8:9 11:3 15:14	record 4:16 8:15,18,20,22 13:20	requests 5:11 6:4 8:10
Patricia 2:9 3:18		purposes 6:22 9:9	refer 6:23 7:4	requirement 5:23 9:13,24 10:1,3 12:8,9, 10,13
percent 5:25 8:7 15:10	pressure 5:19	<hr/> Q <hr/>	reflect 12:16	
Perfect 4:3	prior 6:18 10:1	question 9:8	regard 4:19	residential 15:8
period 8:2	proceed 12:3 14:19	questions 8:13 9:2 10:6 12:25 13:2 15:21,24	related 5:15, 22 8:4	respect 4:1
place 3:4	projected 8:1	<hr/> R <hr/>	relief 5:11 7:19	response 11:10,16,18, 23 14:1,5,8
placed 12:7	projects 5:15, 20		replacement 5:14,15,19	result 5:24 8:6
plus 14:24	propose 6:25	rate 3:6 5:14 6:17 7:23 8:9 14:23 15:3,15	representing 3:20	resulting 5:23 10:3
preference 3:25	proposed 6:2,22 8:8 12:15,16,19 14:23 15:2,4	rates 6:2,18 7:4 11:13 12:13,19	represents 12:8	revenue 5:22, 23 7:24 8:3
prepare 11:9 13:24	proposes		request 6:15	
prepared				

9:13,24 10:1, 3 12:8,9,10, 13	12:7	Stephenson 2:18 3:15 4:1, 5,6,7,10,15, 17,19 5:10 6:5 7:8,18 8:12 9:9,12 10:6	7:1 12:16	9:24 12:8
reviewed 15:12	Shauna 2:23 3:22 13:7,14, 21		technical 11:3 13:22	tracker 4:20 5:14 6:17 9:18 12:6
<hr/> S <hr/>	sheets 6:16, 21 7:1 12:16	Street 2:5 4:18	test 8:2	truth 4:8,12 10:17,21 13:12,16
Salt 2:6,11 4:18 11:2	should 7:6	strike 6:15	testified 4:12 10:21 13:16	turn 6:5
same 6:20 8:3	showing 6:22	striking 7:1	testify 4:1	two 6:14,23 7:7
say 7:6	shows 6:25	summarize 5:11 7:19	testimony 5:3 7:10 11:19 14:9	typical 5:25 8:7 15:8
Schmid 2:9, 21,24 3:18,19 8:14,15,19, 22,23 9:1 10:9,10,13,23 11:21,25 12:24 13:6, 10,18 14:11, 15,16 15:20 16:4,7	sir 10:18	summary 9:23 12:1 14:17 15:19	their 15:10	<hr/> U <hr/>
second 6:6 7:5	site 15:2	swear 4:8 10:17 13:12	Therefore 12:18	uncollected 14:25
seeks 5:13 7:21	Sorry 9:1 13:10	sworn 4:12 10:15,21 13:8,16	through 4:24 5:6 6:9 7:10, 14	under 4:21,25 6:10
September 14:25	South 2:5,10 4:17 11:2	<hr/> T <hr/>	time 3:4 8:3 12:22	until 12:21 15:17
service 5:16	Springer 13:9,12	take 3:12	title 10:25 13:20	updated 6:19
	stands 14:6	taking 7:5	today 3:16 5:3 6:7 7:10 11:19 12:1 14:9,17	uses 15:8,9
	state 2:5 4:15,17 10:24 13:19	tariff 6:16,21	total 5:23	using 6:1 8:8
	stated 9:24			UT 2:11

<p>Utah 2:4,6 3:5,7,14,19 11:12</p>	<hr/> <p>Y</p> <hr/>	<p>year 5:25 6:1 8:7,8 15:9</p>
<p>Utilities 2:10 3:20 11:3</p>		
<p>utility 11:3 12:5,12,17 13:21</p>		
<hr/> <p>V</p> <hr/>		
<p>volumes 8:1</p>		
<hr/> <p>W</p> <hr/>		
<p>while 8:3</p>		
<p>will 3:15,21, 23 4:15 8:21 12:22 15:5,6, 9</p>		
<p>witness 2:17 3:15,21,23 4:9,11 9:18, 22 10:12,14, 18,20 13:5,7, 13,15</p>		
<p>witnesses 9:4,6 10:7</p>		